
UNITED NATIONS 

ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL COUNCIL 
1318th meeting 

Wednesday, IS July 1964 
at I 0.55 a.m. 

Agenda item 17: 

Thirty-seventh session 
OFFICIAL RECORDS 

CONTENTS 
Page 

Reports of the regional economic conunissions (continued) 19 

President: Sir Ronald WALKER (Australia) 

Present: 

Representatives of the following States, members of the 
Council: Algeria, Argentina, Australia, Austria, Chile, 
Colombia, Czechoslovakia, Ecuador, France, India, Iraq, 
Japan, Luxembourg, Senegal, Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics, United Kingdom of Great Britain and Nor
thern Ireland, United States of America, Yugoslavia. 

Representatives of the following States, additional 
members of the sessional committees: Cameroon, Ghana, 
Iran, Italy, Mexico, United Arab Republic, United Repu
blic of Tanganyika and Zanzibar. 

Observers for the following Member States: Brazil, 
Bulgaria, Central African Republic, China, Hungary, 
Ireland, Israel, Poland, Romania, Spain, Venezuela. 

Observers for the following non-member States: 
Federal Republic of Germany, Holy See, Switzerland. 

. Representatives of the following specialized agencies: 
International Labour Organisation, Food and Agricul
ture Organization of the United Nations, United Nations 
Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organization, Inter
national Bank for Reconstruction and Development, 
International Monetary Fund, World H~alth Organiza
tion, Universal Postal Union. 

The representatives of the International Atomic Energy 
Agency. 

AGENDA ITEM 17 

Reports of the regional economic commissions (E/385'1/ 
· Rev.2, E/3864/Rev.l, E/3876/Rev.l, E/3887, E/3929, 
E/3937) (continued) 

I. Mr. KAKITSUBO (Japan) thanked the executive 
secretaries of the regional economic commissions for 
their statements (1315th meeting) and annual reports, 
which showed that the commissions had accomplished 
much constructive work in their respective regions. His 
delegation supported their ambitious programmes for the 
coming year, as well as the priorities attached to the 
various projects concerned. 
2. At the same time, it was disappointing that all the 
developing regions were confronted with serious pro· 

PALAIS DES NATIONS, GENEVA 

blems which prevented them from attaining the growth 
rate aimed at in the United Nations Development De .. 
cade. Those problems were widely divergent in their 
nature and scope. In the industrialized economies of 
Western Europe, a shortage of manpower appeared to 
constitute a major bottle-neck, whereas in Asia and the 
Far East the rise of living s-.andards was held back by 
demographic pressures. In the ECAFE region, as else
where, the more effective utilization of idle manpower 
through training was a most urgent problem. In view of 
the rapid population growth in that region, his delega
tion agreed with the Executive Secretary of ECAFE on 
the urgent need to increase food production and to devise 
suitable policies to cope with the alarming rate of popula .. 
tion growth. 

3. When a country drew up its iong·tr.rm economic plans, 
it had to take into account the demographic factor, as 
his country had done. It was significant that the first 
Asian Population Conference held at New Delhi in De
cember 1963 had adopted a resolution inviting the gov
ernments of ECAFE countries to adopt a positive popula
tion policy related to their individual needs, and that the 
ECAFE secretariat planned to provide demographic 
advisers for member States of that body. While the 
population problem was not so serious .in the ECA and 
ECLA countries, they too would have to take it into 
account before long . 

4. Since the obstacles to economic development varied 
from region to region, it was the economic commissions 
which were in the best position to devise ways and means 
of implementing the resolutions adopted by the Economic 
and Social Council and the General Assembly. It was in 
that sense that his delegation had supported the decen
tralization of United Nations economic activities and the 
strengthening of the commissions, provided that control 
from Headquarters was not thereby impaired. He was 
therefore glad to note that the strengthening of the re
gional secretariats and the delegation of responsibility 
from Headquarters had been smoothly and progressively 
carried. out. 

19 

5. The summer session gave the Council an opportunity 
to review the activities of the conunissions and examine 
their future work programmes with the personal partici
pation of their executive secretaries; through such annual 
review and examination, the Council was able to evaluate 
their past achievements and control and harmonize their 
future activities. 
6. As·a country lying in the ECAFE region, Japan parti· 
cularly appreciated the work of th~ ECAFE secretariat. 
His country attached great importance to regional projects 
such as the Mekong basin development project and the 

E/SR.l318 



II I Li @¢ HI# 4,4 I I 4Q 0 ¢#hQA J £.$, t.TtL. t. #JS 2 A .t $. £1 2 Jill& 3 OJUAIJWSM$ 4$2 :::q 

20 Economic and Social Councll - Thirty-seventh session 

Asian Institute for Economic Development and Planning, 
as they contributed to the efficient use of limited resources 
and to greater international understanding and solidarity 
among countries in the region. Japan would therefore 
continue to co-operate in regional projects of that kind. 
7. His delegation shared the concern expressed by the 
Executive Secretary of ECAFE about that region's 
declining share in over-all aid under the United Nations 
technical assistance programmes, and hoped that in future 
ECAFE would receive a fair share of such assistance.· I . . 

8. He looked forward to the Conference of African 
Finance Ministers which was to he held at Tokyo in 
September, for it would help to strengthen the ties between 
African countries and his own. 
9. Mr. KURKA (Czechoslovakia) said that in view or 
the complexity a.nd diversity of the problems facing the 
regional economic commissions, he would confine him
self to reviewing some of the principal factors bearing 
on their aotivities. Fifstly, as a result of the international
ization of productive forces, both production and pro
duction specialization were progressively outgrowing the 
framework of individual States; that in turn was stimulat
ing the further development of the international division 
of labour and bringing about an unprecedented growth 
in regional and sub-regional trade. 
10. Happily, the regional economic l.~Ommissions were 
actively promoting those trends, and their ,·eports revealed 
a common preoccupation with the need for economic 
integration and regional co-operation among the countries 
of each region. The internationalization of productive 
forces was partioularly noticeable - the activities of 
ECE, under whose auspices the ina-. ~ .... ialized countries 
of Western Europe had undertaken a close co-ordination 
of their intra-regional trade and bad established a division 
of labour among their large monopolistic industries. 
The socialist countries, too, were systematically introduc
ing the international division of labour, but for a different 
purpose: by eliminating the differences between the mem
bers of the Council for Mutual Economic Aid (CMEA) 
it was intended to make possible their p~rticipation, 
on the basis of equal rights, in a comP!eh~nsive regional 
co .. operation while at the same time developing their 
. economic links with other countries in Europe and 
elsewhere. 
11. In an age of rapid technological advance, closer 
regional economic co-operation was an obvious need 
and the regional commissions must do their utmost to 
encourage its development. Thus; ECE played a vital 
role in bringing together States with different, 'socio
economic systems and levels of development, and had 
adopted various resolutio.ns concerning East-West trade 
and other vital questions. aimed at making the Commis
sion a clearing house for experts from all over Europe. 
His. delegation had repeatedly etr~ssed the need for the 
further extension. of regional' eo-~~~(,ration based on 
decentralization of the economic e1cHvities of the United 
Nations, particularly in the case of ECB. At the same 
thne, it favoured the development of inter-regional eo
operation on the basis of contacts among the secretariats 
and subsidiary bodies of the various commissions. There 
was little substance in objections that ECE had already 

reached the limits of its activities, or that it cherished a 
desire to be placed above the other commissions. Indeect, 
the support for ECE expressed at the United Nations Con
ference on Trade and Development by many Western 
delegations, and the growing recognition of the need for 
regional co-operation which that implied, promised well 
for the future. If his delegation had certain constl'uctive 
criticisms to make regarding the ECE secretariat, their 
sole purpose was to help the Executive · Secretary to 
perform his task more effectively. . 
12. The decentralization of United Nations econo••uic 
activities initiated under General Assembly resolu
tion 1823 (XVII) could be successful only if it stimulated 
regional co-operation with a view to the joint mobilization 
of all resources available in a given region. It must 
likewise be accompanied by inter-regional economic 
and trade co-operation, appropriate to the scale of modern 
production methods. 
13. The reports showed that the regional economic 
commissions understood how decentralization should 
be carried out, and that they realized the importance of 
joint efforts to overcome the obstacles. Meanwhile, 
it was the Council's business to give continued attention 
to the objective factors which were tending inexorably 
to co-operation on a world-wide. scale, The regional 
economic commissions should be given financial support 
commensurate with their responsibilities. 
14. Regional economic co-operation naturally implied 
universality. In that connexion, it was both illogical and 
harmful that the German Democratic Republic, whose 
policies were wholly in accord with the United Nations 
Charter and which had repeatedly demonstrated its 
readiness to help solve Europenn economic problems, 
should continue to be barred from participation in ECE. 
Indeed, there were some general problems which could 
not be settled in its absence. However, he was convinced 
that good sense would ultimately prevail over political 
prejudice, and that representatives of the German Oemo· 
cratic Republic would take their rightful place in the 
Commission. 

15. Mr. KOPCOK (Yugoslavia) thanked the Executive 
Secretaries of the regional economic commissions for 
their succinct statements. As a member of ECE, Yugo
slavia had always taken a lively interest in the work of the 
other commissions, particularly since they served the 
developing countries, with which it enjoyed very friendly 
relations. He was glad to note from the reports that-con
siderable progress had been made in the matter of co· · 
operation among States in under-developed regions. 
The decentralization and strengthening of the. regional 
commissions under General Assembly resolution 1823 
(XVII) had certainly contiibuteq to that state of affairs, 
and its further application would. doubtless continue 
to. bear fruit: At the same time,. he was glad to note that 
ECA, ECAFE and ECLA, while endeavouring to adapt. 
!heir own future long-term objectives to the particular 
Interests of the, region . concerned, were continuing to · 
take into account their links with countries in other 
regions. 
16. Turning to the role played by ECLA, ECAFE and 
ECA in preparing for the United Nations Conference 



1318th meeting -15 July 1964 21 

on Trade and Development, he said that the most recent 
sessions of those three commissions bad enabled the 
participating countries not only to work out common 
regional views, but to transcend divergent regional 
interests for the sake of a joint trade and development 
policy on a world-wide scale. While the role to be played 
by the regional commissions in implementing .the Trade 
Conference's recommendations was not yet clear, they 
would certainly have importtmt supplementary tasks to 
carry out as a result of the Conference. He hoped there 
would ·be an opportunity to discuss those tasks under 
other agenda items at. the present session. 

17. The reports showed that co-operation within the 
regional commissions was being intensified. As far as the 
developin.g countries were concerned, however, su.ch 
co-operation was limited by a number of structural 
factors, of which the low level of development and the 
inadequacy of financial and other resources were the 
most import~)nt. Such obstacles must be removed as 
rapidly as possible jf the targets of the Development 
Decade were to be reached. In that connexion, it was of 
vital importance not only to implement the Trade Con., 
ference's recommendations, but also to meet certain 
of the developing countries' claims which were not yet 
generally accepted. 

18. Turning to the main problems which ECE was trying 
to solve, he said that the Commission had a double task, 
na1.11ely, to encourage economic, technical and commercial 
co-operation between its members and to make an effec .. 
tive contribution to the United Nations programme for 
accelerating economic development in the countries 
in process of development. Those two tasks were 
closely linked and one could not progress without the 
other. 

19. Unfortunately, owing to political factors which 
prevented the development of greater co-operation 
between countries with different social and economic 
systems, the ECE had not obtained the results that it 
was entitled to .expect. If such co-operation could be 
realized, it would certainly contribute to an acceleration 
of economic development in general. However, in spite 
of those. limitations, favourable developments were 
taking place within ECE, even in connex.ion with the 
solution of problems of economic co-operation at the 
European level. He had mentioned those developments 
at the thirty-sixth session (1268th meeting) and events 
since then had confirmed what he had said. Industrial 
co-operation between the countries memb~rs of ECE, 
particularly in certain key industries, left much to be 
desired. The adoption by ECE, of resolution 6 (XIX) on 
co-operation relating to the study of market trends &nd 
prospects for chemical products (see E/3887) was a 
promising sign; similar action should be undertaken in 
other fields. 

20. The problem of European trade, in particular East
West trade, was at present being carefully studied by 
government experts, and there was reason to believe 
that more tangible results could be anticipated in that 
field~ It was obvious that intensification of East-West 
trade, Which was at present hampered by a strong move
ment towards sub-regional integration, would have a 

favourable effect on the expansion of world trade, and 
especially on the increase of exports from the developing 
countries. The · ECE should try to overcome the forces 
tending towards economic sub·r~gionalism; that would, 
not only benefit Europe as a whole, but also the other 
regions of the world, including the. under-developed 
regions. · 
21. ·His del~gation believed that the recommendations 
of the Conference on Trade and Development wou!d 
have an important influence on the work of ECE. A· first 
step· in that direction had been taken. by the Conm:Ussion 
when it bad adopted resolution 3 (XIX) giving bigh 
priority to the activities of the Comn1ission in relation tc;> 
the United Nations Conference on Trade a:t".r.l Develop
ment (ibid). 
22. The Commission's future work should, eveu more 
than in the past, have the two aspects which were laid 
down in its terms of reference. The Commission should be 
the instrument not· ·only· of intensified .co-ope.ration 
between its members, but alsp of co-operation between 
its members and the members of other regiona! cotn· 
miGsions. Those two aspects of ECE~s wo!k were. all t~e 
more significant as it was composed of the most highly 
industrialized countries in . the world. 
23. It was a matter of satisfaction that in a number. of 
cases the· countries members of ECE, when examining 
problems · of mutual co,,operation, , were· taking into 
account the usefulness of such co .. operation to, anc1 its 
repercussions on, the developfng countries. Thus, the 
extension and integration of te~hnical assistance had 
resulted in initiatives which had directly benefited devel .. 
oping countries. The seminar on the application of 
modern· techniques in the steel industry was a case in 
point. Furthermore, the many meetings taking place 
within ECE during the year which dealt with subjects 
affecting European co·operation · were alFJo important 
for the developing countries because those subjects 
related to development. 
24. In connexion with ECE's activities, he paid a tribute 
to the excellent work done by its secretariat and particu .. 
larly by the Executive Secretary and ,his immediate 
collaborators. · 
25. Mr. WEBER (Luxembourg) shared the feelings of 
admiration expressed by some other delegations for what 
had been achieved by the regional economic commissions 
and the feelings or apprehension at the size of· the· tasks 
which had still to be· accomplished. His Government 
was prepared to do all it could to help accomplish thos~ 
tasks. An economic union, which extended in many 
instances to the social sector, had existed for many years 
between · Belgium, the Netheriands and Luxembourg, 
and his delegation's attitude in the Council would often 
reflect the common interests of Benelux. 

26. Luxembourg was a member of ECE, and his delega
tion wished to express its satisfaction with the quality 
of documents prepared by the Commission's secretariat. 
As the Executive Secretary had stressed, the immediate 
concern of the Commission was to study problems· ·Of 
East .. West trade. In. that connexion his delegation con· 
tbtued to be interested in the work of the ad h1Jc group 
appointed to study those problems. The purchases made 



FifZ Pi ; 4 t JA ;e;x !W.>N&M.APRAUWM h :: ii.tlii!i uaz I&IMIIU!$Q$!Zil#£ t _ .. .!U!M&JII!ik&£2!£!!£1&41&12&Sti !II UMJSJQUJUtztLJ I hi a 

Economic and Social Council -Thirty-seventh session 

by the Benelux countries in the countries of Eastern 
Europe were proof of the fact that their market was to a 
large extent open to competition. His delegation was in 
favour of extending trade on a reciprocal basis between 
the countries with planned economies and those with 
market economies. It hoped that the ad hoc group would 
meet before the end of the current year and that it would 
submit a constructive report either to the Committee 
on. the Development of Trade at its next session or to the 
Commission at its twentieth session. 
27. His delegation had listened atttmtively to the state
ment made by the Executive Secretary of BCAFE, who 
had given such a clear picture of the enormous size of 
that region, its many needs and the differences in the 
levels of development which were to be found in the 
various countries. The Executive Secretary had stressed 
the spirit of co .. operation and the feeling of common 
responsibility which had grown up between the Commis
sion's Asian members and in their relationship with 
industrialized countries throughout th~ world. That was 
one pro.of that the Commission had become a valuable 
instrument of international co-operation which was bene
fiting the developing c;ountries in the region. 
28. One of ECAFE's most spectactlJar activitiee. had been 
in the field of water resources: the 1\ !ekong basin develop
ment project was an example of W•1at could be done on 
a multilateral basis. The considerable progress madP, 
in the: transport sector was also worthy of particular 
mention. The Commission was also doing extremely 
useful work in connexion with industrial development 
and would have an important rol¢ to play at the proposed 
symposium relating to the prob!eills of industrialization 
of the developing countries. Up to the present, its activities 
in the agricultural sector had been less extensive, and 
in view of the fact that per capita agricultural production 
in many Asian countries was now lower than before the 
Second World War, increased attention to that se::tor 
might be extremely useful. 
29. The difficult problem of the constant deterioration 
in the balance-of-payments situation of the countries 
in the region· had been highlighted by. the studies under
taken by the Commission's secretariat. The Teheran 
resolution on the United Nations Conference on Trade 
and Development (see E/3876/Rev. 1, p. 121}, which 
addressed an appeal for co-operation to the industrialized 
countries, emphasized the importance of the problem; 
30. His delegation wished to stress the importance of 
the Asian Institute for Economic Development and 
Planning, which would not only help to encourage the 
preparation of integrated development plans but would 
also throw light on the special problems of the countries 
of the region. 
31. He had greatly appreciated the statement made by 
the Executive Secretary of ECLA. The research under
taken by the secretariat of ECLA and the independent 
way in which ECLA had on StNeral occasions drawn 
attention to the structural and financial problems of 
the region were matters for admiration. The recent 
studies relating to the industrial integration of Latin 
America and the plans for co-operation with the Inter• 
:American Development Bank were also important. 

32. All the reports before the Council demonstrated 
the increasing importance of systematic planning with 
a view to accelerating economic and social development. 
ECLA, in close collaboration with the Latin American 
Institute for Economic and Social Planning, would certain
ly play a vital part in that field with the help of the Alliance 
for Progress, which also based its activities on the need 
for planning. Those co-ordinated efforts might be expected 
to lead to an intensification ·of the economic and social 
development of the regions concerned. 
33. His delegation had welcomed the 1etermination 
shown by all the countries participating in the sixth 
session of ECA to find solutions for the problems of 
that region. It was particularly pleased that the social 
questions which·were so important for economic develop .. 
ment had given particular attent~on at Addis Ababa. 
34. Two aspects of the Commission's report (E/3864/ 
Rev. 1) were of particular importance. In the first place, 
stress should be laid on the importance of co-ordination 
in the field of assistance in order that the African countries 
should obtain the maximum benefit from the various 
types of assistanceJ available. Secondly, although Luxem
bourg was in favour of multilateral aid, his delegation 
had been interested to note that Uniteti Nations technical 
assistance could stimulate and amplify all other forms of 
external aid, particularly in the sectors of training and 
transport. The development of a n~twork of communica
tions adapted to the 'leeds of rational industrialization was 
of the utmost importan~e for the economic expansion 
of Africa. To attain such an objective, a cor.tinous 
effort of planning at a pan-Afrircan level would be 
required. 

· 35. The creation of the Institute for Econo'llic Devel
opment and Planning by ECA answered a vital need, 
and his delegation welcomed the initiative shown by the 
Commission in that connexion. Luxembourg and Bene
lux's economic associates were giving a special welcome 
to industrial missions sent by the Comm; .. ~!on. 
36. A crucial problem which should not be overlooked 
was that of the shortage of qualified staff, which remained 
one of the most serious obstacles to the development 
of Africa. The Benelux countries would continue to contri
bute as far as possible to the training of administrative 
and technical African staff. His delegation was satisfied 
that certain initiatives had already been taken in that 
field thanks to a constructive co-operation between 
Europe and Africa. No effnrt should be spared by any 
nation, however small, to help. 

37. Mr. VIAUD (France) said that the Council's annual 
debate on the activities of the regional economic com· 
missions gave the Council an opportunity not only to 
take note of their reports but also to hear statements 
from the executive secretaries and to have valuable 
personal contacts with them. The regional commissions 
were subsidiary organs of the Council, but a parallel 
could be drawn between the discussion of their activities 
and the discussion which would take place on the acti
vities of the specialized agencies. It was the Council's 
task to take stock of regional or world-wide problems 
in the econcmic and social sectors and to ensure that the 
activities of the United Nations, its subsidiary bodies 



1318th meeting ....... 15 July 1964 23 

and the specialized agencies should b~ co-ordinated. The 
fact that the Council's committees would, at the present 
session, have nine additional membe.rs was not only 
a step towards increa!3ing the size of the Council itself 
- a step which his delegation believed to be desirable -
but was also proof of the interest of the United Nations 
in the proper functioning of an irreplaceable organ. 
38. The reports at present before the Council showed 
that besides matters of interest to each region, there were 
questions of more general import. The essential role of the 
United Nations in contributing to the economic and social 
progress of all its member States and in raising the stan
dard of living of their peoples was thus clearly illustrated. 
39. It was not by chance that the terms of reference of the 
different regional economic commissions were strikingly 
similar. That was because, even if their activities were 
not designed to meet the same needs, they were designed 
to' fulfil a double objective which was common to all the 
co,mmissions. In the first place, the commissions provided 
the countries of the region, and those other countries 
whose assistance would be useful, with a suitable frame
work for studying problems of economic development 
and regional co-operation. Secondly~ they enabled the 
Council to co-ordinate activities and, llnder the e;uidance 
of the O~:«Ieral Assembly, to direct the activides of the 
organ~ of the United Nations which were competent. in 
the ecoU(Imic and social field. 
40. A certain ft·t~dom of action was necessary to the 
;(egional economic commissionB if they were to carry 
out properly a study of the problems in the regions they 
represented. Each one was a centre where the countries 
in question could meet to exchange opinions and explain 
their problems. But those organs were also part of a much 
larger body, and their role would be all the more effective 
if they tried to contribute, in liaison with the Council, 
to the common objective which he had mentioned earlier. 
41. The regional economic commissions must have an 
acute sense of priorities. Too much stress could not be 
laid on the advantages of concentrating on subjects 
which were both the most important and the most 
urgent. Those subjects were international trade, indus
trialization, and the training of administrators and 
technical staff. The best results would be achieved if the 
necessatily limited means of regional economic com
missions were used in the most rational manner. 
42. The community of aims of the regional economic 
commissions did not exclude individual characteristics. 
The reports showed that each commission had specific 
situations to face. · 

43. The ECE, in contrast to the other regional economic 
commissions, had to deal with the complex problem of 
relationships between extremely varied economies. No 
matter what subject it studied, ECE was faced with 
difficulties. The extensive knowledge of the experts who 
participated in its work and the experience of the secre
tariat had enabled the Commission to undertake studies 
which were particularly useful to its members. Besides 
the studies of the European economic situation, the 
Commission rilight well interest itself in other problems 
the solution of which cottditioned the expansion of the 
countries of the region. 

44. The Commission might .also play a .new role in its 
relationships with the other regional economic com• 
missions. The experience that it had gained since its 
establishment on the subject of industrialization was at 
the disposal of other regions to the extent that technical 
problems similar to those which had to be solved by the 
European countries arose in the developing cou.ntries. 
Co-ordinated industrial development in the countries 
of one . region often gave rise to technical difficulties, 
which the many qualified experts of ECE might be able 
to help to solve. 
45. Although ECLA had not met during the present 
year, its members had had frequent contacts, during 
which they had paid particular attention to problems of 
international trade. That had enabled the countries of 
the region to adopt a con1mon attitude at the United 
Nations Conference on Trade and Development. A more 
thorough study might be undertaken of tc:rms of trade 
from the point of view of 1he economic development of 
Latin America. The proje~t. for the creation of a centre 
for industrial development {which ECLA secretariat bad 
been considering for a long time), regional economic 
iutegration and land reform were all points upon which 
ECLA could wen concentrate attention in the coming 
years. . 
46. Regional economic co· operation was also a major 
preoccupation in Asia and the iFar East. Even though it 
was more difficult to talk of . economic integration in 
that vast region because of the diver·sity of situations 
that existed in it, it would be wise to develop a policy 
for strengthening the economic links between the States 
members of ECAFE. The Commission was well aware 
of that fact, as had been ·shown at the ministerial Con
ference on Asian Economic Co-operation, held at Manila 
in December 1963, during which the member countries 
had adopted a realistic programme of regional co-opera .. 
tion, the first stage of which was to be discussed shortly 
by a committee of experts. 
47. The Commission had laid stress on the project for 
establishing a regional centre for planning and industrial 
development. His delegation was not anxious to dissuade 
the Commission from persevering in that direction, but it 
suggested that the activities of the future centre should be 
closely .linked with those of the Asian Insitute for Econo
mic Development and Planning which had been function
ing for a year. 
48. The objectives of growth were particularly difficult 
to define in Asia where population problem:s were so 
important. There cnuld be no doubt that the expansion 
of trade with the rest of the world would give a new 
impetus to economic devel~pment, but care should be 
taken to see that efforts to expand international trade 
should not result in relegating to second place purely 
domestic aspects of development, particularly industriali
zation and the training of administrative and other staff. 

49. The ECA was probably the Commission which had 
to face the most numerous and the most urgent problems. 
It was not surprising that it had met with difficulties in 
establishing its programme of work and in keeping to it, 
:by concentrating its resources and possibilities on priority 
sectors, BCA would strengthen the effectiveness of an 



*"" i' w•"'*''""""'" I .; E 9 I MIA##$$ *"""'** ii. 4 IWW4AIIQMUW:VU ¢ i I .. A __ ;; 4?1U4 llbiU ! 4445¥ut I .liiA!U Ttl 10 SOIA .Z!&Ch&U I U t!Zb&U 24 i .&$ i a: 

24 Economic and Social CouncD - Thirty~eventh se..~lon 

organ which its member States believed to be indispens·· 
able. In that connexion, the French delegation believed 
that a comprehensive approach was preferable to an 
analytical one in studying different problems the solution 
of which depended on a small number of conditions of 
a human, social, economic or financial character. 

50. The development of natural resources, industrial pro
gress, the improvement of transport, and above all the 
~raining of administrators and technical perso~nel were, 
in his opinion, the priority field~ for action by ECA. The 
desire of the African countries to encourage the creation 
of new industries was legitimate, but their planning would 
have· to be supported by serious studies relating, in parti
cular, to the technical problems of power and the social 
problems of manpower. 

51. The needs of the region were so great that selective
ness was necessary. While it was right that the African 
countries should give the international institutions a large 
role ln the study of their common problems, they should 
have recourse to the different forms of international co
operation, .. either multilateral ot bilateral, which they 
considered most suitable for the implementation of their 
development plans. 

52. International institutions, like governments, were con
tinually obliged to adjust their undoubted needs to their 
limited funds, and the regional economic commissions 
did not escape that necessity. It was vitly by. maintaining 
a prope;. equilibrium between the needs of their members 
and the possibilities of international economic co-opera
tion, particularly at the financial level, that they could 
achbve substantial results. 

53. Without prejud~.ce to his delegation's position on 
draft resolutions concerning Coum~il action on particular 
points, he was able to state that his delegation would be 
prepared to take note of the reports of the regional 
economic commissions and to approve their programmes 
of work. 

54~ Mr. CHANDERLI (Algeria) said that the regional 
economic commissions constituted effective instruments 
of the Economic and Social Council in promoting the 
ideals of the United Nations in an essential sector of 
human. activity. Moreover, the commissions were able 
to provide the community of nations with information 
which was of inestimable value. They could also be a 
means whereby that community might one day close the 
tragic gap which separated the rich countries from the 
developing countries. 
55. His delegation had been extremely interested in 
reading the admirable reports of the four regional com .. 
missions and in hearing the statements of their executive 
secretaries. 

56. The Executive Secretary of ECE had provided 
valuable information on the economic prospects of the 
European region. The stress he had laid on the need to 
develop interregional co-operation had been much appre
ciated by the representatives of developing countries. 

57. The Executive Secretary of ECAFE had given the 
Council an idea 6f the immense problems which faced 
the countries of Asia and the Far East. He had been right 

in emphasizing the value to ECAFE of enlisting the 
assistance of highly d~veloped countries like Australia 
and New Zealand in the Commission's work. 

58. The Executive Secretary of ECLA had very cle~rly 
described the situation in his region, and had dealt 
courageously with the problems which faced the Latin 
American countries and the dangers to which those 
problems might give rise. 

59. The E~ecutive Secretary of ECA had enabled the 
Council to realize the extent of the task facing the African 
countries. He had bee11 very frank and had left no room 
for falf:le hopes. 
60. His delegation hoped that the co-operation between 
the executive secretaries of the regional economic com .. 
missions would be extended as far as possible, since the 
commissions were in the best position to know the 
importance of a situation which might at any moment 
become a matter of life or death. If the gulf · .vhich 
separated the industrialized countries from the developing 
countries continued to increase, it might well become 
more dangerous to humanity than aU· the destructive 
weapons which were still being piled up. His delegation 
was very concerned about the difficulties encountered by 
the commissions in accomplishing their task. The l?~ed to 
obtain material, financial and technical assistance from 
institutions and governments able to provide such assis
tance was common to all the resional commissions. It 
was only necessary to recall the infrasttucture problems 
mentioned by the E:r.:ecutive Secretary of ECA to realize 
how extensive was the problem. A lack of action or 
selfishness at present could only bring about chaos in the 
future. 
61, The Algerian delegation welcomed the progress made 
by the regional economic commissions during the past 
year and was pleased that the projects submitted for 
consideration by the Council offered prospects for the 
harmonious and relatively rapid development of the 
under;.developed regions. 
62. The executive secretaries of the regional economic 
commissions could rest assured that the African peoples 
were determined to work within the framework of ECA 
to accelerate their economic and social development. In 
that connexion, however, there was one matter of great 
concern to his delegation, namely the interests of those 
African territories still under colonial domination. He 
hoped that the peoples. of those territories could at least 
be ass.ociated in one way or another with the progress the 
continent was being called upon to make. T~eir associa· 
tion with the work of ECA would enable them -to accede 
to indepenO.ence- which he hoped would take place very 
soon - under the best conditions. Experience had shown 
that preliminary studies of the problems of countries 
nearing independence and a prior analysis of their needs 
and potentialities were of great value. All that could be 
done to prepare those countries for national and inter• 
national responsibility would be conducive to the ideals 
of peace and stability written into the Charter of the 
United Nations. If the still dependent African territories 
could be associated with the studies and activities of ECA; 
the interests of their peoples and the 4'ause of peace and 
international security would be usefully served. His 



1318th meeting~ 15 July 1964 25 

delegation hoped that the question co.uld be studied by 
the Office of Legal Affairs of the United Nations. 
63. The United Nations Cdnference on Trade and 
Development had enabled the under-developed countries 
to make themselves heard. Their voices had been unan· 
imous. He hoped the world would not forget what it had 
heard. 

64. Mr. CISS (Senegal) said that examination of the 
work and achievements of the regional economic commis
sions showed that the stage of international co-operation 
had been reached. He con2ratulated the executive secre .. 
taries on the work und~rtaken by their commissions on 
the most diverse problems. The basic problem facing 
all regions was to secure a fast rate of economic growth 
in the developing countries and to improve. the world 
economic situation. Each country was faced with {t 
own difficulties; there was, however, a host of problems 
extending beyond national frontiers which the regional 
commissions had to list,· study and solve. 
65. His delegation's attention had been drawn in parti
cular to the efforts of ECA on such matters as the 
training of administrative staff, the compilation of an 
inventory of the continent's resources, the co-ordination 
of economic development, and preparations for an 
African common market and the African Development 
Bank. All those problems had been seriously and 
thoroughly examined. It was e3sential however, that they 
b~ solved without delay because some of them, pari:i~u .. 
Iarly the questions of an African common market, the 
African D\')velopment Bank, industrialization and eco
nomic planning and matters relating to the agricultural 
sector, were of fundamental importance. It was also 
essential that the studies, p~uticularly those on matters 
of common interest, be made in close co-operation with 
the other regional economic commissions. It was a fact 
that the problems facing d~veloping countries were 
identical: trade~ financing and national or international 
development. Those problems were interrelated aud could 
not be treated in isolation. The concerted effort of the 
regional economic commissions was therefore a matter 
for satisfaction. His delegation hoped that that liaiQon 
would continue and that the Commissions would also 
co-operate very closely with the proposed Trade and 
Development Board, the establishment of which had been 
recommended by the United Nations Conference on 
Trade and Development. All African countdes had placed 
great hopes itt the outcome of that Conference and on 
the increased assistance of organizations belonging to 
the United Nations family. 

66. Mr. WALDRON-RAMSEY (United Republic of 
Tanganyika and Zanzibar) said that his delegation 
intended to participate fully in all the proceedings of the 
Council because all African delegations were bound by 
the resolutions of the Organization of African Unity 
to press for the expansion of the Economic and Social 
Council in such a manner as would adequately accom· 
modate and reflect Africa's appropriate and equitable 
representation in that body. 
67. Unlike the United States delegation, his delegation 
found no cause to marvel at the wondrous complexity 
and variegated nature of the Councirs agenda, which 

was but a reflection of man's original and unfinished 
agenda and of man's own society. In his delegation's 
opinion the agf.'lnda was simply a reaffirmation of faith 
in the dignity and worth of the human. person and an 
achievement of international co-op~ration in solving 
international problems of an economic, social, cultural 
.and humanitarian character. · 

68, His delegation had been deeply impressed by the 
degree of personal involvement and commitment with 
which the executive secretari~s of the regional ~conomic 
cop1missions had presented the introductions to their 
reports. As the representative of Colombia had said, 
the perspicacity of the United Nations . in realizing the 
wi~dom and utility of creating the regional commissions, 
and their subsequent success, was , sufficient to justify 
the foundation of the United NatiDns itself. · 

69. As was to be expected, the economic story of Europe 
differed from that of Latin America, Asia and, the Far 
East and Africa. He congratulated the peoples of Europe 
and hoped they would proceed to e. ven greater economic 
achievements, for he believed that ~n a world of inter
dependence, and because of the ultimate interv~ntion of 
the law of diminishing marginal utmty, the richer Er1ro .. 
pean nations would fi.nd it both economically sound and 
strategically correct to share some of their economic 
surpluses with the developing countries, which in any 
caoe were responsible for that super-abundance. His 
delegation did not agree with the Australian del~gation 
that it was because of inevitable and unchangeable 
econornic patterns that the industrialized countries of 
Europe had failed to be mo·re materially sympathetic and 
helpful tc the developing r~gions of the world. The 
ecPnomic and social roystem could and should be 
changed N> one that would redound to the benefit of all 
mankind. 

70. The reports of the Executive Secretaries of ECA, 
ECAFE and ECLA contained many similarities, but 
there were differences of emphasis. The Latin Americans 
seemed to be on the point of industrial take-off but needed 
the harmonization of unified continental objectives for 
the over-all strengthening of the economic tue of the 
continent. The report (E/3876/Rev.l) introduced by the 
Executive Secretary of ECAFE had painted a picture 
of a steadily rising population with the simultaneous 
rapid reduction in the production of food. The picture 
was, however, also one of a continent on the move and 
the Executive Secretary had been right to appeal for 
assistance from the industrialized countries. 

71. His delegation had drawn considerable encourage
ment from the report introduced by the Executive 
Secretary of ECA. The quiet and steel-like optimism of 
the Executive Secretary was also characteristic of the 
African continent, where self-help was the watchword 
and where the people were inspired by an enthusiasm to 
achieve their own advancement. It was apparent from 
the Executive Secretary's report that Africa was a conti
nent on the move. In its economic and social aspirations 
it intended to remove all encumbrances and impediments 
that had been placed in its way for centuries. The pros
pectus the Executive Secretary had placed before the 
Council displayed a veritable panorama of' the tools for 



26 Economic snd Social Council,.,...... Thirty-seventh session 

continental unification: the Conference of African Statis· 
ticians, the African Institute for Economic Development 
and Planning, and the move to establish an African 
payments union and an African common market. The 
ECA had also very properly adopted resolution 94 (VI) 
unanimously requesting that the representatives of the 
Non-Self-Governing Territories of Angola, Mozambique 
and South West Africa be permitted to attend future 
sessions of the Commission as assodate members. His 
delegation hoped the Council would have no difficulty 
in accepting that resolution without reservation. 
72. His delegation was particularly pleased with the 
report of ECA because it revealed that Africa was deter .. 
mined to succeed at all costs, with or without external 
support. His own country, for example, had set itself 
the task of achieving in ten years what the colonial 
Powers had failed to do ~n fifty years. They would rely 
primarily on self-help, but would not spurn genuine aid 
from friends and well-wishers. 

Printed in Switzerland 

73. His delegation· appreciated the offer <)f aesistance to 
the African Development Bank made by the United 
Kingdom Government and hoped that all other former 
metropolitan Powers would follow its example of. magna
nimity. His delegation had als.o been encouraged by the 
remarks of the United States repre,sertative ·who had 
said that the Americans would stand side by side with the 
Africans, and hoped that they represented a reversal of 
the position taken by the United States Government at 
the United Nations Conference on Trade and Develop· 
ment. 
74. His delegation was convinced that there was a certain 
complementarity in the problems of the four economic 
regions. The answer did not lie in further polarization 
and insularity but in achieving international co-operation 
by employing international machinery for the promotion 
of the economic and social advancement of all peoples. 

The meeting rcse at 1.10 p.m. 

16401-August 1964--1,350 




